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By fall of 1888, seating for nearly 300 people had been laid out to accommodate camp meetings sponsored by the Methodist Church.
Marlow's Excelsior grange and those from neighboring towns frequently patronized the grove. Dinner tables, a cook stove and well,
swings, and croquet grounds were added over the years. In 1890 a pond was created for rowboats. A more complete description of the
grounds appeared in the September 12, 1891 edition of the Keene Evening Sentinel:

Not the least among the attractions of the place is Edgewood, a pretty little picnic Grove on the Alstead road, about a half a mile from the
village. Through the public spirit of the owner of the land, Mr. ].Q.Jones, the ground has been cleared of its undergrowth, hard driveways
have been built up, swings hung and croquet ground smoothed off. A platform for speaking has been in place for many years; also a pump
which furnishes good water, houses for lunching, a cooking house and ice cream stand. More recently a fine preacher’s house and good
seats have been provided for camp meetings and for a few years such meetings have been held each fall under the direction of the pastor of
the Methodist church.

Mr. Jones is constantly working to make the grove still more attractive. He has built a dam across a stream flowing through the land and
now has a pretty little lake with several boats to still further delight the young people. A winding path through the trees in full view of the
lake, over little knolls and across rustic bridges, leads to a lovely spot where a pretty waterfall and a profusion of flowers and climbing
vines remind one of similar spots in Central Park and other places of like cultivation. Passing through this garden of loveliness is a true
lover’s walk, without which all this attractiveness would be incomplete - to the lovers.

The approximate location of Edgewood Park appears on the 1892 town map. In late August of 1893, ].Q. Jones counted 200 dahlia
blossoms in his garden at Edgewood. Marlow was one of the first towns in the state to celebrate “Old Home Day.” The tradition began
in 1899 by proclamation of Governor Rollins in an attempt to stem the tide of migration from the farms to the cities. Former residents
were invited to return to town to renew associations with old friends and familiar places. Whenever weather permitted, Old Home Day
exercises took place at Edgewood Park which welcomed approximately 700 people to its grounds that first year. The place continued
to be the preferred site for Old Home Day celebrations as noted in the August 24, 1903 edition of the Keene Evening Sentinel:

Had the day been pleasant the committee had arranged to celebrate at Edgewood park, a charming spot, not more than a half a mile from
the village centre, which by the public spirit and generosity of one of its chief citizens, John Quincy Jones, has been made into a village park
sufficiently large to accommodate any public gathering that may enter its boundaries. Evidently, Mr. Jones, who has for many years
employed his leisure hours in clearing, reconstructing, and beautifying this natural park, as been inspired and prompted by sentiment and
a taste for the beautiful, as one section of the park is a veritable flower garden with a large variety, composing selections that would
indicate that the proprietor was a person skilled in flower culture and who was not a stranger to the very desirable quality of man’s higher
nature that is dominated esthetics.

The flower section of the park is flanked on one side by an artificial lake or pond, the elevation of which has been made to endow the
garden of flowers, and within the enclosed is a twin waterfall, the music of which can be heard from all sections of the park. Besides the
waterfalls aforementioned the stream or rivulet has been made to traverse the flower grounds around and through its limits so that the
visitors can at all times gratify their tastes for the music of the running waters. Moreover, to make easy and convenient the walk of visitors,
avenues and bridges have been constructed. Indeed the park with its buildings and embellishments is well worth a journey to behold, not
counting the many other attractions that Marlow can justly claim.

John Quincy Jones died April 8, 1909, at age 92. Upon his death, Edgewood Park was passed to his son, Elgin Alonzo Jones, Marlow’s
preeminent historian. It appears that after J. Q. Jones’ death, Edgewood Park was no longer maintained and Old Home Day celebrations
became sporadic. The area was devastated by the Hurricane of 38 and the 41 Forest Fire. Upon Elgin Jones’s death, December 20,
1940, the 20 acre Edgewood Park was sold to a succession of timber and real estate companies. Having rediscovered Edgewood Park,
Patricia Gallup purchased the property as part of a 149.2 acre parcel owned by Leeward Holdings, a West Indies corporation. Her
intent was to preserve Edgewood Park by subdividing the 20 acre parcel and donating it to the Marlow Historical Society with the
hope that it might one day be restored.

Tracy Messer

Mark your Calendars Now!! Jones Hall February 23 at 7p.m.
"Grandma and Grandpa's Parlor Music"...a piano concert featuring Tristan
Smith. Tristan will interpret popular music of the turn-of-the 19th century
enjoyed right here in Marlow. This is a free concert; refreshments will be
served.











